
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

E-mail: democraticservicestdc@teignbridge.gov.uk 
 

23 October 2023 
 
 

EXECUTIVE 
 
 
A meeting of the Executive will be held on Tuesday, 31st October, 2023 in the Council 
Chamber, Forde House, Brunel Road, Newton Abbot, TQ12 4XX at 10.00 am 
 
 

PHIL SHEARS 
Managing Director 

 
Membership: 
 
Councillors H Cox, Goodman-Bradbury, Jeffries, Keeling (Deputy Leader), Nutley, 
Nuttall, G Taylor, Wrigley (Leader) and Hook 
 
 
Please Note:The public can view the live streaming of the meeting at Teignbridge 
District Council Webcasting (public-i.tv)  with the exception where there are 
confidential or exempt items, which may need to be considered in the absence of the 
press and public.  
 
 
A G E N D A  
 
Part I 
 
  
1. Apologies for absence   
 
2. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2023. 

  
3. Announcements (if any)   
 
4. Declarations of Interest (if any)   
 
5. Executive Forward Plan   

Public Document Pack

1

https://teignbridge.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://teignbridge.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://teignbridge.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 

 To note forthcoming decisions anticipated on the Executive Forward Plan 
  

6. Public Questions (if any)   
 Members of the Public may ask questions of the Leader or an Executive Member. A 

maximum period of 15 minutes will be allowed with a maximum of period of three 
minutes per questioner. 
  

7. Update on Future High Street Fund  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 
8. For Information - Individual Executive Member Decisions   
 Executive Member Decisions  

 
Part II: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public excluded 
  
9. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 - 

Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

 RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of following 
items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the relevant paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
  

10. Teignmouth Den Tennis Court Lease  (Pages 19 - 76) 
 
11. For Information - Urgent Decision  - Replacement Baler  (Pages 77 - 80) 
 
If you would like this information in another format, please telephone 01626 361101 or 
e-mail info@teignbridge.gov.uk  
 

2

https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=135&RD=0
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?XXR=0&ACT=Find&RP=0&K=0&V=0&DM=3&HD=0&DS=2&Next=true&NOW=190319114139&META=mgdelegateddecisions
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?XXR=0&ACT=Find&RP=0&K=0&V=0&DM=3&HD=0&DS=2&Next=true&NOW=190319114139&META=mgdelegateddecisions
mailto:info@teignbridge.gov.uk


 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE 
 
3 OCTOBER 2023 
 
Present: 
 
Councillors H Cox, Goodman-Bradbury, Keeling (Deputy Leader), Nutley, Nuttall, 
G Taylor, Wrigley (Leader) and Hook 
 

 
Members in Attendance: 
Councillors Atkins, Clarance, D Cox, MacGregor and P Parker 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Jeffries 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
Christopher Morgan, Trainee Democratic Services Officer 
Sarah Selway, Democratic Services Team Leader & Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Tom Phillips, Assets Manager 
Neil Blaney, Head of Place & Commercial Services 
Martin Flitcroft, Chief Finance Officer & Head of Corporate Services 
Amanda Pujol, Head of Community Services and Improvement 
Tracey Hooper, Service Lead for Revenue, Benefits and Customer Support 
Nikki Rawley, Council Tax Lead Officer - Revenue & Benefits 
 

These decisions will take effect from 10.00 a.m. on 10 October 2023 unless 
called-in or identified as urgent in the minute 
 
 
  

63.   MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2023 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
  

64.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Cllr Nutley declared an interest in respect of minute no.66 - New Homes Bonus 
and Dartmoor National Park – as he was a Member of Dartmoor National Park 
and would leave the meeting during consideration of the item. 
 
Cllr Hook declared an interest in respect of minute no.66 - New Homes Bonus 
and Dartmoor National Park – as she was an employee of Dartmoor National 
Park and would leave the meeting during consideration of the item. 
  

65.   EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN  
 
RESOLVED that the Forward Plan be noted. 

3

Agenda Item 2



 
 

  
66.   NEW HOMES BONUS AND DARTMOOR NATIONAL PARK  

 
Cllrs Hook and Nutley left the meeting during consideration of this item. 
The Executive Member for Corporate Services presented the report to provide 
Members with oversight on receipt of New Homes Bonus, engagement with 
Dartmoor National Park (DNP) and any potential redistribution. 
 
Non-Executive Members spoke on this item.  
 
RESOLVED to retain all New Homes Bonus received with no onward distribution 
to Dartmoor National Park. 
 
The vote was unanimous. 
  

67.   SUPPORT FOR CARE LEAVERS  
 
The Executive Member for Corporate Services presented the report to notify 
members of the discussions that have been had with Devon County Council and 
the other district authorities in Devon around producing a package of support for 
Care Leavers in recognition of our shared corporate parenting responsibilities.  
 
Non-Executive Members spoke on this item. 

 
RECOMMENDED to Council the adoption, in principle, of a Council Tax support 
offer for Care Leavers which will incorporate a council tax discount, free 
membership to our leisure centres and work experience opportunities. 
 
The vote was unanimous. 
  
  

68.   UPDATE ON FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND  
 
The Leader presented the update on the Future High Street Fund. 
 
Non-Executive Members spoke on this item. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
The vote was unanimous.   
  

69.   PROPOSED LONG LETTINGS OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCES TO 
TEIGNMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL AND A DISPOSAL OF A PUBLIC 
CONVENIENCE IN TEIGNMOUTH  
 
Local Ward Members spoke on this item before proceeding into Part II session 
they raised concerns regarding the length of time it had taken to get to this stage 
and that the Council should honour the originally agreement. 
  

4



 
 

70.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the Press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  

71.   PROPOSED LONG LETTINGS OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCES TO 
TEIGNMOUTH TOWN COUNCIL AND A DISPOSAL OF A PUBLIC 
CONVENIENCE IN TEIGNMOUTH  
 
The Executive Member for Corporate Services presented the report on the 
proposed long letting of Public Conveniences to Teignmouth Town Council and 
a Disposal of a Public Convenience in Teignmouth. 
 
Non-Executive Members spoken on this item. 
 
RESOLVED to:- 
 
Approve the course of action set out in the Property Related Proposal section of 
this report, including: 
 

• Approve the use of £77,406 capital funding from revenue contributions to 
capital currently set aside in an earmarked reserve for the Aquarium 
building enabling works and Lower Point Car Park container purchases 
with the payments to the Town Council being made after construction 
work has started on site.  

 
• Delegate authority to the Head of Place and Commercial Services and 

Head of Legal to dispose of the Council’s freehold interest in Brunswick 
Street toilets and part of adjacent property at such a time and on such 
terms as considered appropriate. 

 
• Approve the granting of new 60-year leases at a nominal rent at the sites 

specified in 2.2 and outlined in 2 (Lower Point Car Park) and Appendix 3 
(Former Aquarium Building). 

 
• to continue to pay Teignmouth Town Council a grant of £71,000 per 

annum until 31 May 2024. 
 

• to declare the Point Car Park Toilets surplus to the Council’s operational 
purposes if Officers conclude that the block is not suitable for use by the 
Council this to be in consultation with the Portfolio Holder responsible.   

 
The vote was unanimous. 
 
 
  

5



 
 

72.   FOR INFORMATION - INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISIONS  
 
Noted. 
 
 
The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 10.47 am. 
 
 
 

 
Chair 

 

 
 

6



 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

Teignbridge District Council 
Executive 
31 October 2023 
Part i

Future High Streets Fund update

Purpose of Report 
To inform the Executive on the progress of the Future High Streets Fund Newton 

Abbot and to approve of the proposals to vary the Council’s planning application. 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
The Committee RESOLVES to: 

(1) Approve an amendment to the current cinema planning applications 

(22/01129/MAJ and 22/01130/LBC) reducing the size of the building and 

widening the gap with the listed Market Hall building. 

Financial Implications 
 
The reduction in building size reduces the revenue generating potential of both the 
cinema and restaurant due to the rental values being assessed on a rate per square 
foot.   
 
The total loss is in the order of £11,000 per annum as detailed in the Financial 
Implications section of this report. 
 
A revised appraisal has been undertaken, encompassing the changes to rental 
income and the affect of inflation on costs.  A return of 1.55% is achieved, remaining 
in excess of the 1.00% target minimum. 
 
Other financial implications remain as previously reported, that the delays are 
considerable and not only places the entire Project at risk but also jeopardises the £9 
Million grant.  Furthermore, delays continue to have an adverse impact on costs as 
we remain in a relatively high inflationary environment.   
 
A detailed breakdown of the overall budget was set out in the Part II report to the 4 
October 2022 Executive. Changes to cost estimates and rental income are 
incorporated in the 1.55% return now quoted.  It should be noted that costs remain 

7

Agenda Item 7

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

estimates until tenders are accepted. 
 
Martin Flitcroft 
Head of Corporate Services 
Email: martin.flitcroft@teignbridge.gov.uk 
 
Legal Implications 
 
There are no specific legal implications arising out of this report. However, 
implications and risks associated with the project previously identified and reported 
remain unaltered. 
 
Paul Woodhead 
Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer  
Email: paul.woodhead@teignbridge.gov.uk 
 
  

8

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

Risk Assessment 
 
There are a variety of risks associated with various options which are discussed in 
the body of the report.  The risks surrounding the recommendation comprise: 
 

- Planning. There are no assurances that the amended scheme will either be 
supported by planners or approved at planning committee. 

- Occupational.  The current interested tenant is not interested in the reduced 
size building which would necessitate going back out to market to secure a 
new tenant before progressing. 

- Timescale.  Running an amendment on the planning is likely to delay the 
decision by a further three or four months. 

- Budget.  The amendment will require additional consultancy fees which we 
would seek to fund through the FHSF project budget but it does not help the 
viability. 

Other general risks to the project were set out in the Executive reports of 12 
September 2022, 4 October 2022, and 17 November 2022, including the risks 
caused by additional delays to the project and the impact of additional work on 
available resources to undertake tasks. 
 
Thomas E Phillips MRICS, Assets Manager 
Email: tom.phillips@teignbridge.gov.uk 
 
Environmental / Climate Change Implications 
 
There are no environmental or climate change implications arising from this report as 
it is ‘to note’ only. 
 
William Elliott, Climate Change Officer 
Email: william.elliott@teignbridge.gov.uk 
 
Report Author 
 
Thomas E Phillips MRICS, Assets Manager 
Email: tom.phillips@teignbridge.gov.uk 
 
Executive Member 
 
Councillor Martin Wrigley 
 
Background Papers 
 

1. Agenda for Executive on Tuesday, 21st July, 2020, 10.00 am - Teignbridge 
District Council - Executive approval of the submission of the Future High 
Street Fund bid, July 2020 

9

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=2710
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=2710


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

2. Agenda item - Future High Street Fund - Teignbridge District Council - 
Executive endorsement of the Future High Street Fund Project, April 2021 

3. Agenda for Full Council on Thursday, 22nd April, 2021, 10.00 am - 
Teignbridge District Council - Council approval of the Future High Street Fund 
Project, April 2021 

4. Agenda item - Future High Street Fund - Newton Abbot Market - Teignbridge 
District Council - Council approval of the Market Hall business case, February 
2022 

5. Agenda for Executive on Monday, 12th September, 2022, 10.00 am - 
Teignbridge District Council - Executive report considering update on the 
Future High Street Fund, September 2022 

6. Decision - Urgent Decision - Future High Street Fund - Teignbridge District 
Council - Urgent decision to progress actions in Executive report following 
cancellation of Executive meeting, September 2022  

7. Part 1 Executive report - FHSF Oct 2022.pdf (teignbridge.gov.uk) – Executive 
report providing update, October 2022 

8. Agenda for Full Council on Thursday, 17th November, 2022, 10.00 am - 
Teignbridge District Council – Extraordinary Council Meeting to agree 
additional funding and revised business case, November 2022 

9. Agenda for Teignbridge Highways and Traffic Orders Committee on 
Thursday, 1st June, 2023, 2.15 pm - Democracy in Devon – HATOC meeting 
regarding the Queen Street proposals, June 2023 

10. Agenda item - Notices of Motion - Teignbridge District Council -  
 
 
1. Background 
1.1 At the Extraordinary meeting of the Council on 06 September 2022, it was 

agreed that: 
 

1.2 ‘With effect from October 2022, officers present a comprehensive written 
report for each executive meeting (whether held or not) on delivery of the 
Future High Streets Fund (FHSF) and its various projects.  The report will set 
out key objectives and timelines, progress towards them, identify when 
decisions will need to be made by council / the executive and all other 
necessary and relevant information about the FHSF to keep councillors fully 
informed.  If necessary, the report may be a part ii ‘exempt item’. 

 
2. Project updates 
 
2.1 Key objectives  

 
2.1.1 The key objectives for the Future High Streets Fund (FHSF) and the Council’s 

successful bid were set out in detail in previous reports to the Executive and 
the Council. It is not proposed to repeat them in this or future update reports.  

 
2.2 Timelines 

10

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=7041#mgDocuments
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=2739
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=2739
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=8487
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=8487
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3094
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3094
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=453
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=453
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/documents/s15818/Part%201%20Executive%20report%20-%20FHSF%20Oct%202022.pdf
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=3219
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=3219
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=182&MId=4840&Ver=4
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=182&MId=4840&Ver=4
https://democracy.teignbridge.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=9926


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

 
2.2.1 A combined project timetable is attached at Appendix 1.  This programme was 

set prior to the planning delays. 
 
2.2.2 The cinema application (22/01129/MAJ) is still live.  If the report’s 

recommendation is approved it will take time to put together the amendment 
documents to submit to planning and then an allowance is required for a three 
week consultation process.  It is unlikely this would all be achieved by the end 
of this calendar year and therefore expectations are for this to be taken to a 
February 2024 Planning Committee for determination.  The resultant delay in 
planning stage would add at least seven months to the project and mean 
practical completion of the cinema would not occur until April 2026. 

 
2.2.7 Plans for the Market Hall are currently being developed. A planning 

application will be ready to submit shortly, however, the decision on the 
cinema project is required in order to finalise the design of the New Look 
demolition block which would either become a new cinema or a re-exposed 
side elevation.   The programme submitted to DLUHC as part of the Project 
Adjustment Request set out a 10 July 2023 target submission date, meaning 
the submission is now four months behind schedule.  Efforts are being made 
to find other programme savings in order to maintain the target completion 
date of November 2025.  

 
 
3 Cinema Updates 
 
3.1 We have been advised that the TDC planning officer’s report will not recommend 
approval of the Cinema application (22/01129/MAJ) when it is taken to Planning 
Committee. 
 
3.2 The planning committee may decide against the planning officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
3.3 One of the principal concerns for the planning officer is the size, design and 
proximity of the cinema to the adjacent Listed Market Hall and Alexandra Cinema.  
This is despite detailed viability and planning support statements justifying the 
reasons for this. 
 
3.4 Therefore to give the planning application a better chance of being supported by 
the planning officer the submission of an amendment is recommended.  This will 
reduce the size of the proposed cinema building and widen the gap with the existing 
listed Market Hall building. 
 

11

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

3.5 However, in submitting such an amendment the occupier currently interested has 
stated they would then withdraw as it would be too small for their operations and 
they are of the view the cinema would then be too small to compete in the market 
against existing facilities at Paignton, Torquay and Exeter. 
 
3.6 This would therefore necessitate going back out to market to find another cinema 
occupier that would take the amended scheme. 
 
3.7 We are advised by sector specialists that the occupational cinema market at 
present is not offering to enter leases any longer than a 12 year term certain.  It is 
therefore unlikely that we would be able to attract a longer term commitment than 
this and it will be less than the original terms agreed some time ago with Scott 
Cinemas who were prepared to enter a 25 year lease. 
 
3.8 It is not proposed that the cinema would be built speculatively (without a tenant 
signed up) but that we translate the work done so far into a planning decision which 
would at least provide closure. 
 
3.9 The cinema planning consent would not be implemented until a cinema tenant is 
secured.  Any spend or commitments made ahead of securing a cinema tenant 
being secured would be approved by portfolio holder prior. 
 
3.10 This presents a timescale risk and cost risk due to the potential for delay to the 
project whilst a new tenant is sought and agreements formalised.  However, no TDC 
funds would be at risk. 
 
3.11 Having spoken to specialist advisors they reiterate that the occupational cinema 
market continues to be thin, particularly given the struggles of the larger operators.  
However, there remains a chance of securing another tenant as the independent 
chains and boutique operators are still active, especially if the market continues to 
improve in to 2024. 
 
3.11 DLUHC are likely to be more understanding of delays due to the occupational 
market and the cinema project being on hold until a tenant has committed, than for 
other reasons such as deliberations on what project to do during what is supposed to 
be the delivery stage. 
 
3.12 Furthermore, DLUHC may be more understanding of a second request for a 
Project Adjustment if it can be demonstrated that the current cinema project is non-
proceedable due to either failing to secure planning permission or failing to secure a 
tenant.  As it stands the project has not had its planning determined and also has a 
tenant wishing to proceed based on the submitted proposals. 
 

12

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

4 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The reduction in building size reduces the revenue generating potential of both 
the cinema and restaurant due to the rental values being assessed on a rate per 
square foot.   
Element Current Size 

(sq ft) 
Current 

Headline Rent 
Amended Size 

(sq ft) 
Amended 

Headline Rent 
Cinema 10,910 £120,000 10,441 £115,000 
Restaurant 6,954 £111,260 6,579 £105,260 
Total 17,864 £231,260 17,864 £220,260 

 
 
4.2 The total reduction in forecast headline rent is therefore £11,000 per annum 
 
4.3. Under the current application and cinema commercial terms the agreed headline 
rent was £120,000 per annum reflecting £11.00 per sq ft on the target build area of 
10,910 sq ft.  Widening the gap has the effect of reducing the target building size to 
10,441 sq ft impacting screens 1 and 2.  The resultant headline rent, if applying the 
same rate, equates to £114,851 per annum, say £115,000 per annum.  A total loss 
of £5,000 per annum from the cinema element. 
 
4.4 The reduced size impacts the proposed restaurant unit 2 reducing in size by 383 
sq ft from 3,563 sq ft to 3,180 sq ft.  The restaurant uses are rentalised at a rate of 
£16.00 per sq ft and therefore the potential rent from the ground floor restaurant 
element would reduce from £111,260 to £105,264, say £105,260 per annum (-
£6,000). 
 
5 Alternatives 
 
5.1 There are a number of alternatives that have been considered. 
 
5.2. Continue with the current planning application which is likely to be taken to 
Planning Committee with an officer recommendation to refuse.  This would then be 
determined by Planning Committee.  If planning is approved against the officer 
recommendation the terms with the currently interested party can be finalised and 
brought to Executive Committee for approval. 
 
5.3 Pursue an alternative Project under the Future High Streets Fund.  However, 
DLUHC has been very clear that no new projects should be submitted for 
consideration during this delivery stage.  Furthermore, communication received 6 
October 2023 reiterated the Grant funding requirement to spend the money by 
March 2024 and requesting any extension requests beyond this to be submitted but 
no later than 30 September 2024.  TDC Officers are engaging with DLUHC to 

13

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

ascertain how our Project is affected considering the Project Adjustment Request 
was approved with a timetable that had the works completing in September 2025. 
 
5.4 The timescale requirements to start again and work up a deliverable scheme are 
such that there is significant risk DLUHC do not approve any new project and the 
significant delay in spending that would entail.   
 
5.4.1 During a call with DLUHC on 12 October 2023 they reiterated the deadline of 
March 2024 remains and extensions to September 2024 may be approved under 
exceptional circumstances.  This is despite TDC’s Project Adjustment Request 
containing revised spend and grant profiles, being approved by DLUHC.  There may 
be an amendment to the definition to allow for committed spend by these dates 
rather than actual spend deadlines, however, authorities would have to demonstrate 
an ability to spend the money that financial year otherwise payments cannot be 
made due to breaching Treasury rules.  This results in a best case spend deadline of 
March 2025. 
 
5.4.1 To demonstrate the timescales involved, the current project has been worked 
up over a decade and in 2019 received FHSF grant funding of £150,000 to 
undertake extensive early feasibility work. This supported the development of 
detailed project proposals to be submitted for capital funding, which was vital lead-in 
work necessary to secure the current FHSF Grant Fund package.  The project has 
then undergone various design stages to get it to the point of deliverability, cost 
plans, business cases, appraisals supporting the Councils investment, Benefit Cost 
Ratios (BCR) analysis, all to support delivery and DLUHC requirements.   
 
5.4.2 A Monitoring and Evaluation process is undertaken twice a year to report back 
to DLUHC, Memorandum of Understandings have been entered in to between the 
Council and DLUHC setting out the grant conditionality and the grant spend 
deadline.  Following this is a lengthy and costly Major Planning Application process. 
   
5.4.3 Officers are aware of alternatives proffered by unconnected third parties, 
however, we are not aware of any evidence of similar feasibility, viability, appraisal or 
other due diligence to support such projects.  An estimated timescale to explore an 
alternative, depending on complexity, could be: 
 
 
Item Timescale Cost 
Prepare reports and obtain TDC 
Executive Committee approval to review 
alternative options 

2 months Officer Time 

Instruct consultants and Undertake 
feasibility and financial viability work 

6 to 9 months £15,000 to £20,000 

14

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

Take findings to Executive Committee 
for decision on which option to pursue 

2 months Officer Time 

Undertake Benefit Cost Ratio Exercise 
with full inputs (eg costs, outturn 
revenue and job creation numbers) 

2 to 3 months £5,000 to £10,000 

Submit Project Adjustment Request 
(PAR) to obtain permission from 
DLUHC for a material change of Project 

3 months Officer Time 

Pre-planning application 3 to 6 months £1,000 
Instruct Design team to prepare 
planning application 

9 - 11 months 
Depending on 
which design 
stage, and 
consultation 
process required 
as part of the 
design 
development 

£300k to £400k 
depending on which 
RIBA stage we 
target 

Intrusive survey works and associated 
additional design fees to establish 
building condition. 

Included in 
above 

£50,000 

Planning Application 6 to 12 months £18,000 
Tender for works contract 3 months Officer Time 
 36 to 51 months £389,000 to 

£499,000 
 
£30,000 of the costs in the table are revenue costs, for which no budget is currently 
set aside.  It is estimated the remaining capital costs will fall outside the Future High 
Streets grant expenditure deadline and would require appraisal on the basis of other 
available funding, most likely to be borrowing. 
 
5.5 Alternative projects to put forward for approval from DLUHC could include: 
 
5.5.1 Refurbishing the Alexandra Cinema building, however, officers have concern 
about the viability of such a proposal and would need to have a robust business case 
presented that demonstrates it works.  If one does not exist officers would need to be 
instructed and the budget released to review the viability and deliverability of this 
alternative proposal.  The scale of such an alternative and its transformational impact 
would also have to be independently assessed under a Green Book valuation to 
establish whether it achieves the minimum BCR score. 
 
5.5.2 Explore options for the Wilko block.  However, given the potential scale of the 
required solution and cost it is unlikely this could be achieved under the FHSF grant 
and TDC capital input alone.  This is particularly the case given the sunk costs for 
the current project which would still have to remain on the appraisal.  Furthermore, 

15

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/


 

Executive 
4 April 2023 

we do not control the Wilko block yet as a lease is still active under the control of the 
administrators. 
 
5.5.3 Abort the cinema project and seek DLUHC approval to pursue the Market Hall 
and Transport Projects on their own.  This may require a Green Book assessment to 
establish if the minimum BCR would still be achieved.  This change would also 
require an amendment to the Market Hall Planning Application and its treatment of 
the current New Look elevation post demolition and creation of the open walkway.  
There are implications to the supporting financials / business case too as the cinema 
project was holding the cost of some shared works such as: 

• The demolition of the Market Hall section that was to make way for the 
cinema; 

• Utilities diversion costs; 
• External public realm works to the walkway, paving, bollards, raised tabletop 

pedestrian crossing; and 
• CCTV and PV cable diversions. 
• The repair works for the roof have been provisionally costs at between 

£200,000 to £300,000 depending upon scope of works and it is hoped that 
this would be carried in the FHSF project budget rather than TDC’s R&M 
budget.  However, with the additional costs above not sitting on the cinema 
appraisal there is a risk the Market Hall budget will not be able to incorporate 
this cost. 

5.5.4 Abort the Cinema and Market Hall Projects and seek DLUHC approval to 
pursue the Transport project (Queen Street and NCN2) on its own.  
 
5.5.5 Abort the entire FHSF Project including the Cinema, Market Hall and Transport 
elements.  This option is likely to cause significant reputational damage to the 
Authority and may jeopardise our ability to secure future Central Government 
funding.  This option would also deprive Newton Abbot of the investment and 
regeneration it thoroughly deserves to unlock its true potential.  The direct and 
indirect financial benefits to the Council’s landholdings would also not be realised 
and put further downward pressure on the rents and values at its Shopping Centre.   
 
5.5.6 Receipt of remaining grant payments is subject to DLUHC’s consideration of 
the Council’s reporting on the project, including financial and risk reporting and 
demonstrating that spend and outcomes are in line with the approved business case. 
 

16

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/


ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1 NA Cinema & Market Hall 720 days Mon 10/04/23 Fri 09/01/26

2 Utilities Diversion 260 days Mon 10/04/23 Fri 05/04/24

3 Revisit Utility quotes 8 wks Mon 10/04/23 Fri 02/06/23

4 Teignbridge to place SWW sewer diversion orders 1 wk Mon 05/06/23 Fri 09/06/23 3

5 Teignbridge to place utility diversion orders 1 wk Mon 05/06/23 Fri 09/06/23 3

6 SWW sewer Diversion Lead ins 16 wks Mon 12/06/23 Fri 29/09/23 4

7 Utility Diversion Lead ins 10 wks Mon 12/06/23 Fri 18/08/23 5

8 SWW Sewer Diversions Site Works 15 wks Mon 02/10/23 Fri 12/01/24 6

9 WPD, Gas, SWW water Site Works 12 wks Mon 15/01/24 Fri 05/04/24 8,7

10 Enabling Works 255 days Mon 15/05/23 Fri 03/05/24

11 Alex theatre plant room redesign 4 wks Mon 18/12/23 Fri 12/01/24 9FS-16 wks

12 Alexc thetare plant room procurement 6 wks Mon 15/01/24 Fri 23/02/24 11

13 Plant room lead-in 6 wks Mon 26/02/24 Fri 05/04/24 12

14 Plant Room Installation 4 wks Mon 08/04/24 Fri 03/05/24 13,9

15 Clarks Works Design review 2 wks Mon 15/05/23 Fri 26/05/23

16 Liasion with Clarks to agree proposals 4 wks Mon 29/05/23 Fri 23/06/23 15

17 Clarks Notice Period, Procure and Lead In 12 wks Mon 26/06/23 Fri 15/09/23 16

18 Enabling Works Delivery - Clarks Works 2 wks Mon 18/09/23 Fri 29/09/23 17

19 Market Hall RIBA 3 45 days Mon 10/04/23 Fri 09/06/23

20 TDC confirm heating decision 0 wks Mon 10/04/23 Mon 10/04/23

21 RIBA Stage 3 8 wks Mon 10/04/23 Fri 02/06/23 20

22 TDC Sign Off RIBA 3 and Feedback 1 wk Mon 05/06/23 Fri 09/06/23 21

23 Market Hall Planning 95 days Mon 12/06/23 Fri 20/10/23

24 Public Consultation 2 wks Mon 12/06/23 Fri 23/06/23 22

25 Planning Application and Listed Building Consent Preparation 4 wks Mon 12/06/23 Fri 07/07/23 22

26 Planning Application Validation 2 wks Mon 10/07/23 Fri 21/07/23 25

27 Planning Decision Period Including Listed Building Consent 13 wks Mon 24/07/23 Fri 20/10/23 26

28 Market Hall RIBA 4 65 days Mon 12/06/23 Fri 08/09/23

29 RIBA Stage 4 design 12 wks Mon 12/06/23 Fri 01/09/23 22

30 TDC Sign Off RIBA 4 1 wk Mon 04/09/23 Fri 08/09/23 29

31  Cinema Planning 55 days Tue 02/05/23 Tue 18/07/23

32 Planning Application updated document submission 0 wks Tue 02/05/23 Tue 02/05/23

33 Planning Decision 0 wks Tue 18/07/23 Tue 18/07/23

34 Cinema RIBA 4 65 days Tue 18/07/23 Mon 16/10/23

35 RIBA 4 design work to complete tender pack 12 wks Tue 18/07/23 Mon 09/10/23 33

36 TDC Sign Off RIBA 4 and Feedback 1 wk Tue 10/10/23 Mon 16/10/23 35

37 RIBA Stage 4 - Building Control Submission & Approval 3 wks Tue 26/09/23 Mon 16/10/23 35FS-2 wks

38 Procurement 119 days Tue 17/10/23 Sun 31/03/24 37

39 Finalise ITT 2 wks Tue 17/10/23 Mon 30/10/23 36,30

40 Tender Period 8 wks Tue 31/10/23 Mon 25/12/23 39

41 Tender Review, report and contracts agreed 5 wks Tue 26/12/23 Mon 29/01/24 40

42 FHSF Grant Spend Deadline 0 days Sun 31/03/24 Sun 31/03/24

43 Construction 509 days Tue 30/01/24 Fri 09/01/26

44 Mobilisation 5 wks Tue 30/01/24 Mon 04/03/24 41

45 Construction Phase RIBA 5 72 wks Mon 06/05/24 Fri 19/09/25 44,14

46 Practical Completion 0 days Fri 19/09/25 Fri 19/09/25 45

47 Cinema Fit Out 16 wks Mon 22/09/25 Fri 09/01/26 46

48 Market traders fit-out 10 wks Mon 22/09/25 Fri 28/11/25 46

10/04

02/05

18/07

31/03

19/09

Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb
2023 2024 2025

Newton Abbot Projects Programme - rev 3 - 05 05 23

17



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Cllrs Hook and Nutley left the meeting during consideration of this item.
	The Executive Member for Corporate Services presented the report to provide Members with oversight on receipt of New Homes Bonus, engagement with Dartmoor National Park (DNP) and any potential redistribution.
	Non-Executive Members spoke on this item.

	7 Update on Future High Street Fund
	Teignbridge District Council Executive 31 October 2023 Part i
	Future High Streets Fund update
	Purpose of Report
	Recommendation(s)
	Financial Implications
	Legal Implications
	Risk Assessment
	Environmental / Climate Change Implications
	Report Author
	Executive Member
	Background Papers

	Appendix 1


